
MEMORANDUM FOR Senate Armed Services Committee
House Armed Services Committee

SUBJECT: Senior Pentagon Leadership’s Maltreatment of United States Service
Members

“Tenebris Saeculorum” is Latin for dark ages and we fear Secretary of Defense
Lloyd Austin and Senior Pentagon Leadership have plotted a course right into the pit of
that darkness.

Esteemed leaders, we are witnessing atrocities and human rights abuses of our
U.S. Service Members under the lawless command of SECDEF Austin and his
subordinate commanders. The actions of the senior Pentagon leadership have wasted
millions of dollars in taxpayer money, effected the maltreatment of service members,
destroyed military readiness, and potentially squandered billions invested in
servicemember training. Your attention and immediate action can right these wrongs.
While tempting to avoid this legal nightmare, ignoring it with a head-in-the-sand
strategy will result in grave consequences.

SECDEF Austin issued an order on August 24, 2021, to all U.S. Service
Members to be vaccinated against the COVID-19 virus using non-experimental
vaccines. This directive was a lawful order backed by court precedent. However, every
action taken since has been illegal and unconstitutional according to international
treaty, federal laws, and military regulations.

Let us bring to mind forgotten laws that protect Americans involved in
experimental drugs, such as Pfizer’s BioNTech COVID-19 Vaccine. In 1974, Congress
passed the National Research Act resulting in a new definition of “Informed Consent”
as outlined in the Belmont Report. Federal law requires the heads of federal
departments and agencies to abide by the ethical principles as laid out in the Belmont
Report when involving humans in medical experimentation such as Pfizer’s BioNTech
COVID-19 Vaccine drug.



The Belmont Report states that at the core of protecting human subjects is the
understanding that medical investigators must have "respect for persons." This respect
begins and ends with the conviction that "individuals should be treated as autonomous
agents." An autonomous agent is "an individual capable of deliberation about personal
goals and of acting under the direction of such deliberation," and that "respect for
persons requires that subjects, to the degree that they are capable, be given the
opportunity to choose what shall or shall not happen to them. This opportunity is
provided when adequate standards for informed consent are satisfied."

Authors of the Belmont Report redefined the legal meaning of informed consent
as required by the National Research Act. This new definition established laws and
regulations requiring authorities to obtain individuals' legally effective informed consent
before involving them in experimental drugs.

Legally effective informed consent is required by law and obtained when
authorities: 1) discloses quality information to the individual required to make an
informed decision; 2) ensures the individual understands the risks and benefits of the
experimental drug; 3) provides an opportunity for the individual to consider whether or
not to participate; and 4) ensures the individual is under no sanctions, coercion, or
undue influence by persons of authority when consenting to participate. Congress
explicitly required that medical countermeasures authorized under section 564 operate
under the legally effective consent requirements.

Congress established the idea that if an individual is under outside pressure to
participate in experimental drugs, then that individual can not honestly give their free
consent. Penalties and loss of benefits for non-participation nullify the individual's
legally effective informed consent which makes it illegal to utilize experimental products
in a mandate.

As of June 10, 2022, the only COVID-19 vaccines available to service members
are classified by the FDA as Investigational New Drugs (IND). The federal government
defines IND as "A substance that has been tested in the laboratory and has been
approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration for testing in people. Also called
an experimental drug, investigational agent, and investigational new drug, or IND."
INDs are governed by a set of laws titled 'The Protection of Human Subjects.'



DOD Instruction 3216.02 for the ‘Protection of Human Subjects’ applies to
“Activities conducted or supported by the DoD, such as research, development,
testing, and evaluation that involve humans, human data, human biospecimens, or
activities regulated by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA).” And it requires the
U.S. Military to abide by Part 219 of Title 32, CFR, and the Belmont Report (44
Federal Register 23192, April 18, 1979) principles, including respect for persons,
beneficence, and justice.

32 CFR 219.101(c) Department or agency heads retain final judgment as to
whether a particular activity is covered by this policy and this judgment shall be
exercised consistent with the ethical principles of the Belmont Report.

32 CFR Part 219 requires the DoD to provide service members with a statement
before involving them in medical experimentation stating, "participation is voluntary,
refusal to participate will involve no penalty or loss of benefits to which the subject is
otherwise entitled." For example, in 2005, the FDA issued an Emergency Use
Authorization (EUA) for an experimental anthrax drug stating, "You may refuse anthrax
vaccination under the EUA, and you will not be punished. No disciplinary action or
adverse personnel action will be taken. You will not be processed for separation, and
you will still be deployable. There will be no penalty or loss of entitlement for refusing
anthrax vaccination."  This statement is related to the classification of the drug and not
to the drug’s formula.  The FDA classified the anthrax drug as an investigational new
drug.

This is why in 2005 the FDA informed the U.S. military that ”Refusal [to participate
in an investigational drug] may not be grounds for any disciplinary action under the
Uniform Code of Military Justice. Refusal may not be grounds for any adverse
personnel action.” (“Authorization of Emergency Use of Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed for
Prevention of Inhalation Anthrax by Individuals at Heightened Risk of Exposure Due to
Attack With Anthrax; Availability”)

32 CFR Part 219, 21 CFR Parts 50 & 56, 45 CFR Part 46, The Belmont Report,
International Conference on Harmonization, Article VII of the International Covenant on
Civil and Political Rights Treaty, the laws of 50 states, and regulations of 20 federal
agencies all require the legally effective informed consent of the individual before the
administration of an experimental drug. These violations by senior Pentagon leadership



are no small matter and already threaten the U.S. government and DoD with significant
legal remedial actions by nearly 2 million service members.

In 2003, Judge Sullivan affirmed the legally effective informed consent
requirement when he ruled against DoD’s investigational anthrax program, "Congress
has prohibited the administration of investigational drugs to service members without
their consent.  This court will not permit the government to circumvent this
requirement."

In effect, the Senior Pentagon Leadership has violated the fundamental rights of
service members to refuse participation in Pfizer's BioNTech COVID-19 Vaccine
experimental drug. Through no fault of their own, our soldiers are penalized because
they can not obey the SECDEF mandate to only use full-licensure COVID-19 vaccines
per FDA labeling guidelines. Why can’t they? Because, to date, only EUA authorized
experimental products are available.

10 U.S.C. § 1107a (a)(1) states, “In the case of the administration of a product
authorized for emergency use under section 564 of the Federal Food, Drug, and
Cosmetic Act to members of the armed forces, the condition described in section
564(e)(1)(A)(ii)(III) of such Act and required under paragraph (1)(A) or (2)(A) of such
section 564 (e), designed to ensure that individuals are informed of an option to
accept or refuse administration of a product, may be waived only by the President
only if the President determines, in writing, that complying with such requirement is not
in the interests of national security.” The president has not issued a waiver and yet
military commanders are violating a direct order by SECDEF Austin and illegally
penalizing service members who choose their federally protected right not to
participate in section 564 experimental drugs. These abusive actions represent a clear
and present danger to our national security by senior commanders of our Armed
Forces.

How did we arrive at a constitutional crisis of senior Pentagon leadership willfully
ignoring their constitutional requirements to obey civilian leadership and congressional
oversight?

Dr. Terry Adirim, former Assistant Secretary of Defense (ASD) for Health Affairs,
issued a memorandum in 2021 to the Assistant Secretary (Manpower and Reserve
Affairs) of the Army, Navy, and the Air Force. Dr. Adirim’s memo states, "Per FDA



guidance, these two vaccines [Pfizer] are interchangeable, and DoD health care
providers should use doses distributed under the EUA to administer the vaccination
series as if the doses were the licensed vaccine." Dr. Adirim's memorandum offers
guidance having significant consequences for our service members and the military
command. First, Dr. Adirim suggests that commanders are not required to obey
SECDEF's legally binding order only to use full licensure vaccines; rather, they can use
a non-licensed drug “as if” it is a licensed drug. SECDEF Austin did not order his
commanders to use experimental drugs; he ordered them to use only FDA-licensed
drugs because the laws that govern those drugs have significant legal consequences
for our men and women in uniform. Shockingly, no one in senior Pentagon leadership
corrected Dr. Adirim’s blatant attempt to cause military commanders to criminally
violate Article 92 of the Uniform Code of Military Justice. Secondly, she suggests that
both drugs are "legally" interchangeable, demonstrating a lack of knowledge in such
areas of law.

EUA drugs must be administered according to the scope of authorization as
outlined in the Emergency Use Letter. Should a full-licensure COVID-19 drug reach the
marketplace, it would be under no such requirements despite that drug containing the
same formula. For example, if a healthcare provider administers the BioNTech vaccine,
they must do so according to the Scope of Authorization laid out in the EUA. However,
if a healthcare provider administers Pfizer’s approved COMIRNATY vaccine, they are
not under those requirements despite the two drugs sharing the same formula. Drug
labels are laws, an act of Congress instituted those laws, and no public or private entity
has the legal right to exempt themselves from them.

21 U.S. Code § 360bbb–3 provides the Department of Health and Human
Services (DHHS) Secretary with the power to authorize the use of unapproved medical
products during a declared emergency. The medical countermeasures approved by the
Secretary are classified as experimental and require the free will and voluntary consent
of individuals before their administration.

Service members are losing commands, rank, paychecks, benefits, and their
dignity because they are obeying a lawful order by the Secretary of Defense only to use
non-experimental vaccines. Yet, the senior Pentagon leadership is at the playground
pretending “as if” an experimental drug is the same as a FDA-approved drug. This lack
of accountability by SECDEF Austin and senior Pentagon leadership is destroying
military readiness and general morale across all the forces.



This body should initiate an internal review of COVID-19 orders given by generals
in the Navy, Army, Air Force, and Coast Guard. Those orders contain false statements,
illegal directives, and conflicting demands. They aptly demonstrate a willfulness by
military commanders to ignore legally binding directives to pursue a political goal of
subjecting 1.4 million service members to medical experimentation without their free
will and voluntary consent.

For example, USAF Major General Jeffrey Pennington issued an order on
November 01, 2021, stating in part, "...if AF/SG denies your religious accommodation
request appeal, then I am ordering you to receive an initial dose of COVID-19 vaccine
with full licensure approval from the FDA and provide proof of vaccination by 1200
hours (noon) during your first duty day in military status." This order is unlawful
because it is physically and legally impossible to obey. There are no FDA-approved
COVID-19 vaccines available to service members to comply with Maj Gen Pennington's
order. However, he contradicts his own legally binding order stating, "The Pfizer
COVID-19 vaccine is not the only option available for complying with this order.
Alternatively, you may choose to receive the two-shot Moderna COVID-19 vaccine or
the single shot J&J COVID-19 vaccine." All three drugs are classified as experimental
per FDA labeling guidelines. In other words, if a service member utilizes one of the
listed drugs to comply with Maj Gen Pennington's order, they will disobey his initial
order. If they wait for a full licensure drug to comply with his order, they will disobey his
order to receive their first shot before noon on their first duty day of military status. Maj
Gen Pennington then states, "Failure to comply with this lawful order may result in
administrative and/or punitive action for Failing to Obey an Order under Article 92,
Uniform Code of Military Justice." Leaders, there is nothing “lawful” about this order.

Military commanders across all United States Armed Forces branches are issuing
similar orders. As a result, service members are being denied fundamental rights to due
process by senior Pentagon leadership who allow their commanders to engage in
horrific abuses of power. Furthermore, the Judge Advocate General’s Corps (JAG
Corps) and the Inspector General have decided to ‘see no evil and hear no evil’ and
pretend “as if” experimental drugs are the same as FDA-approved drugs. Moreover,
federal law, court precedent, state laws, and a direct order by SECDEF Austin require
only non-experimental drugs to be used when issuing a vaccine mandate. Therefore,
how is the Judge Advocate General’s Corps finding it legally sufficient to penalize



service members who refuse participation in an investigational drug despite the
president not issuing a waiver? But they do not hold commanders accountable who
disobeyed SECDEF’s order requiring only FDA-approved vaccines to be used unless
informed consent is given.

SECDEF Austin and the Senior Pentagon Leadership have brought dishonor to
the military profession due to their dereliction of duty, causing severe maltreatment of
service members. These injustices demonstrate they are no longer fit to command the
obedience of their subordinates to successfully complete the military mission.

Therefore, I request 1) the United States House of Representatives appoint a
special prosecutor to investigate military officers who violated the 14th Amendment
rights of service members to opt out of COVID-19 experimental drugs per FDA labeling
guidelines; 2) prosecute errant officers accordingly; 3) start an unfavorable information
file (UIF) of commanders who engaged in abuse of powers for consideration in future
promotions by this body; and, 4) send a letter of reprimand to the Judge Advocate
Generals, Inspector General, and the senior Pentagon leadership for their maltreatment
of our service members.

“Article 93, UCMJ, proscribes cruelty toward, or oppression or maltreatment of,
any person subject to an accused’s orders; and the elements of this general intent
offense are: (1) that a certain person was subject to the orders of the accused; and (2)
that the accused was cruel toward, or oppressed, or maltreated that person; such
cruelty, oppression, or maltreatment must be measured by an objective standard;
moreover, such conduct need not result in actual harm to the victim — either mental or
physical — because the essence of the offense is abuse of authority” - US Courts
Guidance

Should the Department of Defense start receiving COMIRNATY to abide by the
laws mentioned above, that would not negate the past atrocities by senior Pentagon
leadership.  This body must ensure that our service members are treated with respect
and equality by those promoted with your approval. That assurance requires your
immediate attention to stop the current abuse of human rights under your watchful
eyes.



I recommend reading the attached memorandum titled, ‘Requested
Clarifications on SECDEF’s COVID-19 Mandate DTD 24 AUG 2021.’ To date, no one in
the entire military command has been willing to answer the questions put forth in that
memorandum by service members to their commanders.

HASC/SASC members, would you freely volunteer to participate in an
experimental drug that forfeited your rights to a judicial remedy, had historic levels of
severe adverse reactions, and did not even claim to inoculate you from any COVID-19
variant?

Now you understand why Congress requires authorities to obtain the legally
effective informed consent of the individual before administering an investigational new
drug such as Pfizer’s BioNTech COVID-19 vaccine.

Sincerely,
Brian Ward
June 27, 2022
CovidPenalty.Com


